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Preface

-So many wonderfully astonishing things are happening on beautiful

‘inlton Head_Island that were one to undertake a study of its nomenclature

- ‘as of any éfbitrarily chosen current date, obsolescence would quickly

ensue;"This study, therefore, records and identifies briefly names of

interest and significance during the long eras between Pedro de Quexos'

18 August 1521 exciting diecoﬁery of Hilton Head, the feast day of St.

Helena, mother of the Roman Emperor Constantine, and the sale of most of
the Island by Thorne and Loomis to a group of Georgians who quickly
reéugnizéd; for the first time since its initial flowering during the -

plantation era which ended on 7 November 1861, its vast potential.

Rev. Robert E. H. Peeples
Hilton Head Island, South Carolina

July 1972




ASH PLANTATION, The 30 May 1775 Map by R. Sayer and J. Bennett shows an Ash

family living on a plantation on the public road on the south side of Broad Creek
on Hilton Head Island. John Ash and Samuel Ash both were married in St. Heléna's
Parish in 1785. George Barksdale of Christ Church Parish married a daughter of
the Island Ash family and settled here.

BALDWIN PLANTATION. Isaac Baldwin (1752-1826) and his wife, Martha (1771-1826)

planted 290-acre Baldwin Plantation and at their deaths were buried in Zion Chapel
Cemetery beside their daughter, Sarah (1789-1806). Their daughter, Mary (1793-
1851) married James Kirk (1780-1850) of Cherry Hill Plantation, selling Baldwin
Plantation to Thomas Henry Barksdale,

BALINCLOUGH HEAD. Balinclough Head was an early designation for the promontory

overlooking Port Royal Sound which became generally known as Dolphin Head. The name
was apparently for the Irish residence to Landgrave John Bayley of Balinclough
although it has been proved conclusively that this property never was a part of

Bayley's Barony.

BARKSDALE. George Barksdale of Christ Church Parish was apparently the first of
this family to settle on Hilton Head. Thomas Henry Barksdale, born 1795, son of

George and Anne Agnes (Bona) Barksdale, was the family's most prominent representa-
' . i gl o fon v who smbrnlfrd i?
tive, owning 2600-acre Scull Creek Plantation, 1820-acre Calibogia Plantation and

230 , Sanak (1807- 18 80),
200--acre Baldwin Plantation. He married Marthal daughter of James and Elizabeth

(Mosse) Stoney, but dying childless in August 1832, was buried in Zion Chapel Ceme~
tery. A handsome miniature of him is extant.

teDee R
BARNWELL. @&n 171% Col. John ("Tuscarora Jack") Barnwell, immigrant founder of the

Huoea on
prominent family of this name, received @ 500-acre grants eader-whieh-he-glaimed
ond :

® Scull

she—entire Port Royal Sound end

Creek. Neither he, nor any of his children, ever lived on Hilton Head Island. In his

1724 will he left the 500 acres at the junction of Scull Creek and Port Royal Sound




to his daughter, Bridget, who married circa 1728 Capt. Robert Sams of Wadmalaw
Cirn othes Forrand

Island. The—other 500 acres, running eastward along Port Royal Sound pp the Atlantic
Ocean, he left to his daughter, Katherine, who married in January 1734 Hugh Bryan,
Vestryman of St. Helena's Parish and a member of the Commons House of Assembly. This
couple became friends of Rev. George Whitefield, founder of Bethesda, who was fre-
quently a guest in their home and persuaded them to start a school for Negroes which

caused quite a sensation among the planters. Katherine died childless on 7 Oct.

1740 "being filled with the full assurance of faith in Christ, and a joyful hope of

eternal salvation through His merits and mediation", as Hugh wrote. Hew—prepesty

BASS HEAD. The headland fronting on the Atlantic Ocean near the line between
Leamington and Shipyard Plantations is designated on most of the old maps of_Hilton
Head Island as Bass Head, apparently honoring the well-known perch-like fish so
esteemed for food and frequently caught here. It has had no other recorded name,

BAYLEY'S BARONY. (Bailey) On 16 Aug. 1698 John Bayley of Ballingclough, County Tip-

perary, Ireland, Landgrave and Caccique of Carolina, was granted by the Lords Pro-
prietors a barony (12,000 acres) which included most of Hilton Head Island other
than land fronting on Port Royal Sound and on Skull Creek. Neither he, nor any of
his family, ever visited Hilton Head Island. His son and heir, John Bayley, early
in the eighteenth century appointed Alexander Trench as his agent for selling the
property. Trench did make several sales of plantations, notably to Captain John
Gascoigne and to Roger Moore. But the bulk of the Barony remained in the Bayley
family until after the Revolutionary War. In 1783 Dr. George Mosse surveyed the
Bayley holdings which then consisted of 47 tracts totalling 14,924 acres.

BAYNARD RUINS. Two Baynard brothers of Edisto Island, Thomas and William, bought

adjoining Spanish Wells Plantation in 1790 and Muddy Creek Plantation in 1792

respectively. William Baynard died ehdddess in 1802 and eventually both plantations



were ::3:::::2 by Thomas' son, William Eddings Baynard (1800-1849) who married in
1829 Catherine Adelaide Scott of the Grasslawn Plantation family. Local tradition
credits William Baynard's pdker—playing proclivities with winning for himself the
deed to 1000-acre Braddock's Point Pléntation circa 1840. Concurrently he purchased
the handsome Davéﬁport House, now a museum, in Savannah and erected the dmposing
granite Baynard Mausoleum which still stands at the site of Zion Chapel of Ease
(Episcopal) at the head of Broad Creek. The extensive tabby ruins, known as the
"Baynard Ruins', are the remains of the Braddock's Point Plantation House apparently
built by the Stoneys before 1830, c. 1796,

BEAR CREEK. The tidal creek stretching southward from Skull Creek around tﬁe high
land known as Bobbs Island on Elliott's Myrtle Bank Plantation has long been known
as Bear Creek, Perhaps this is a faint reminder of the fact that the entire island
was known in the early seventeenth century as the Island of the Bears.

BERWICK PLANTATION. J. Berwick apparently acquired a 312-acre plantation circa

1783, lands formerly leased by planter Daniel DeSaussure, as indicated by D r.
Mosse's Survey. On the Ocean side of the public road on the south side of Broad
Creek, this would probably fall into contemporary Shipyard Plantation.

BIE BLOW. The devastating hurricane of 1893 claimed an estimated two thousand
lives on St. Helena's and Hilton Head Islands and has ever since been referred

to as "The Big Blow'".

BIG GATE. Because of the necessity for controlling the movement of valuable
cattle and other livestock, the public road between the various plantations was
blocked by heavy wooden gates which swung on iron hinges. Travellers on horseback
or on foot opened the gate just wide enough to pass through then closed it behind
them. Coaches and buggies required someone to open the gate across ;pg entire road
and then‘élose it behind the.vehicle. Big Gate Was'tﬁe strategig site near the
head of Broad Creek and the Island's Zion Chapel-of-Ease, separating Folly Field
and Marshlands Plantations. It was here that the Revolutionary hero, Charles
Davant, and his riding companion, John Andrews, were ambushed by the Royal Militia

in December 1781,



BLAKEWAY PLANTATION. As early as 1 Jénuary 1725 William Blakeway of Charles
Town purchase@/a plantation of 200 acres in the Skull Creek area, land apparently

sold to John Bull before 1763. Blakeway was thus among the earliest owners of
Hilton Head Island property although his name is no longer represented here.

BLAND PLANTATION. Lancelot Bland and Richard Bland leased portions of Lots 17,

18 and 21 of Bayley's Barony as shown on Dr. Mosse's 1783 Survey. When Richard
Bland in March 1769 married Elizabeth, daughter of John Fendin of St. Helena's
Island, he placed 1600 pounds currency and six slaves in trust for Elizabeth with
John Cheney and Benjamin Parmenter as Trustees. Richard Bland sold 600-acre

Grass Lawn Plantation to William Pope, Sr. who willed it to his son, Richard R.
Pope. Richard's widow married secondly, Charles Davant, the Revolutionary hero,
and thirdly, Christian Rankin. Richard's will of 1 September 1775 was proved

10 May 1776. Lancelot Bland's will of 15 December 1777 left 2/3 of his estate

to Elizabeth Read, daughter of his brother George Bland, and the remainder to

his brother Richard's two children, Richard and Elizabeth Bland.

BOBBS ISLAND. The island cut off by Bear Creek at the point of Skull Creek and

Port Royal Sound has long been designated as Bobbs Island, although the only
nomenclature for the area on the 1775 Sayre and Bennett Map is Elizabeth Point.
Bridget Barnwell, wife of Captain Robert Sams, owned this property from 1724;

it passed to their son, Robert Sams, in 1760. After he died the same year, it

was sold to William and Phoebe (Jenkins) Waight. The island was probably named
for Captain Bob Sams. On one map it is désignated Skull Island.

BONA. St. Helena's Parish Register records that "Jacob Bona, Carpenter, a
Swisser'", was in the Parish by 1737 when the first of his five locally born
children arrived. Hisison, Lewis Bona, married on Hiiton Head in June 1774 the
widow Sarah Parmenter; he was a member of the Revolutionary war party, the Bloody
Legion in 1781 and holder of Lots 4 and 22 of Bayley's Barony in the Mosse Survey

in 1783, lands later incorporated into Folly Field and Marshlands Plantations.
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Bunnay's (Boney's) Ditch, near Long Island, may have been named for him.

Dot
BRADDOCK'S POINT. ®wwsel Cutler Braddock, Captain of the Scout Boat maintained

by the Colony of South Carolina as a lookout against the Spaniards from 1740
until the 1763 Treaty of Paris, lent his name both to the promontory at the
junction of Calibogue Sound and the Atlantic Ocean and to the 1000-acre
Braddock's Point Plantation which was composed of Lots 46 and 47 of Bayley's
Barony on the Mosse Survey described as "lands formerly leased by John ="

[ A o, 39T pensr wina b»»}ldilﬂm I‘T?Sﬁnféon b Todn Tantt Yerdion -folhnn] 2!;'/3 B"'g’lcﬂ
Gambol (and) James Gray'. AIt was purchased by the Stoney family who held it

l}.-

until.££49-when it was acquired by William Eddings Baynard.

BRAM'S POINT. William Gerard DeBrahm, German surveyor-cartographer, interim

Surveyor General of South Carolina, Surveyor General of the Southern District
of North America, presented his two-volume report to King George III in 1773.
Entitled "Report of the General Survey in the Southern District of North
America', it was the first scientific survey of present day South Carolina,
Georgia and Florida. The point of land between Calibogue Sound and Broad Creek
honors his memory.

BROAD CREEK. At the point where Chaplin, Folly Field and Marshlands Plantations

meet is the head of a wide and impressive tidal estuary known as Broad Creek. It
runs roughly parallel with the Atlantic Ocean and empties into Calibogue Sound at
the southernrend of Long Island.

BROWN. In April 1876 '"Carpetbagger' W. D. Brown bought from the federal government
500-acre Folly Field Plantation for $110, the 465 acres of Fickling's Possum Point
Plantation between the public road and the Ocean, and for $400 the 400 acres of
Kirk's Cherry Hill Plantétion. Shortly thereafter at Four Corners he opened a
general store which in 1907 became the Island Post Office,with his wife, Mrs.
Lulie Brown as Postmaster. Their two daughters, Helen and Fannie, married and

settled on the mainland, The Browns lived in an apartment above the store. There



von the evening of 4 July 1923 they were murdered by two Negro men who were duly
apprehended. in Charleston shortly thereafter, one boldly wearing a Qatch with his’

" victim's name engraved on the cover. Both murderers were executed.

;’*; BUCK .ISLAND.. Off the tip of Brams Point between Broad Creek and Calibogue Sound

lies a sma11 island, inacessible at high tide. As.a refuge for the white-tailed
deer it eatl& acquifed the name of Buck Island. Indeed, Brams Point was formerly
called Buck Point.

,BULL.PLANTATION.’St. Helena'"s Parish Register records the Christmas Day 1757
bﬁfial-on Hilton Head Island of Island planter Arthur Bull. The 1783 Mosse Survey
a shows ﬁlanter Thomas Bull as principal holder of Lots 12, 13, 14 and 15 of Bayléy's
~ Barony, cbn;ti:uting the bulk of what became Stoney's 944-acre Otterburn (later
Otter Hall and Otter Hole)\Plantation on the north side of Broad Creek.

CALIBOGIA PLANTATION. The name used by Martha Sarah Stoney Barksdale Lawton for

her 1820-acre plantation, composed of Lots 40-44 of Bayley's Barony, reaching from |
the Atlantic Oéean to Broad Creek, was Calibogia Plantation. There she and her
second husband (and first cousin), Rev. Joseph Alexander Lawton, built a home as
well as a short-lived Baptist Church. Detéils of the plantation's operations may

be found in The Lawton Papers in the South Caroliniana Library. It'was inherited

BFesrge
by their son, SamuelplLawton, who was forced to mortgage it in order to redeem it

under the Redemption Act. In 1889 when he sold it at public auction to satisfy its
mortgage holder, his wife, Harriet Brooks Lawton, bought it, eventually selling it

to William Clyde at a profit.

CALIBOGUE SOUND, 'The deep channel between Hilton Head and Daufuskie Islands has
long been known as Calibogue Sound, the word "calibogue" being much like the Creek
Indian.WOrd f;f'"deep sﬁring", "calaobe". It has variously been spelled.Calibogie,
Caléboco; eté., probably referring to the fresh-water spring or well on the bluff

overlookirng the Sound:




CALIBOGUE PYINT. This was an early appellati®n for the

.sﬂuthérn tip of Hilt°n Head Island; the name Braddock's
Point prevailed.
. CAPERS PLANTATION. The well-known St. Helena's Island family

lfﬁfidapars_was represented ©on Hilton Head by Richard-Capers\
 whn held a 266-acre plantation, LOt 2 of Bayley's Bar®ny as
indicated ®n.the 1783 MO0sse Survey, land ultimately incﬂrpo-
rated int0® Grass Lawn Plantatifn. |

'CHA?LLE‘PLANTATION. John Cheplin arrived in Carnlina in April

1672, Chaplin Creek near the}c"nfluence of Ston® and Kiawahv
Rivers marking the area "f his residence. His s®n, J®hn
Chaplin, Jr., married PhCebe, daughter ©f JOhn Lads®n, and
settled On St. Helena's Island befCre 1716. Their grandsOn,
:William‘Ffipp Chaplin (1767-1830) in 1820 ®wned 4QO-acre
Chaplin Plantati®n on the Atlantic between Mathew's FOlly
Fleld and Pfpe's Leamingt®n Plantati®ns. ShOrtly thereafter
he purchased 400-acre Marshlands Plantation from the Estate
ﬁf Thomas Webb. He married (1) Catherine TOOmer by whom he had
fifteen children and (2) Harriet Martinangel by whem he had an
additiﬂnafkghildren. Both estates were entirely 1l0st t® the
Chaplin 'family at the c"nfiscati®n; the name Chaplin Plantetifn
- still endures. |

CHERRY HILL PLANTATION. Cherry Hill Plantati®n lay t® the nfrth

nf Folly Field and Grass Lewn Plantaticns and s®uth "f Pfpe's
Fish Hadl Plantatirn. It included the 258 acres Of Lnt 1 of
Ba§1eyfs Barony plus additifnal acreage. It was probably fnce
called BaidWin Planﬁatiﬁn, later bectming the Isla;d seat Of the
Kf;k family from whom it was c"nfiscated in 1861. W. D. Brown

btught ;ﬁﬁ:4QD»acres in 1876 for $400, selling ®ne acre each to




Negreo Béptists and Methodists fOr their churches, land still

'g® held

CLYDE. "An army private stati®ned ©n Hilt®n Head Island during

the War ©f the NOrthern Agression was s© smitten with its natural

*jibeauty,_sunny skies and mild winters that he c®uld never forget

it. After New Englander William P. Clyde made a fortune with his

"Qlyd9 Stéamship Lines, he began buying Island prfperty circa
1886, accumulating alm®st ten thOousand acres. He rebuilt the
lﬁ&ﬁae at HOney HOrn Plantati”n, maeking it his headquarters for
_hunting vacations, with J. E. Lawrence as hls superintendent

"and Henry Padgett as gamekeeper. Mest Of his Island holdings

were eventuallylacquired by Rﬂy'Rainey who s0ld t© ThOrne and

Loomis.

.QCOGGINS PUINT (Celginse Point) The valuable 800-acre Coggins

~P01nt Plantatiﬁn at the nOrtheastern cOrner of the Island was

‘;Awmé €107 Aonk B Mok tomich e $wife £z,

Jeintly t© Edmund. E11lis and Samuel Green.\Fhe

Savghtonte—iretng
peld +o w% (31 a-aus).... Aot 1163 vhe wmade 4 his Mot oy nenidinee, (w‘(l »¢ Fehy r-u-:)

ieg—atlid_thodr—ir and Samuel Green left COlginse
Print P].anta'ti‘ﬂn'tn his daughters, Sarah and Susannah Green, in
his wiil‘of 24 February 1769. Sarah Green, named f°r her mother,
Sarah, daughter Of JOnathan Norton, married (1) Th®mas Tucker énd‘
(2) Williem POpe, Sr., carrying t" him her Crggins P0int Plantatirn
which became a principal seat Of the PPpe family until eCnfiscation,
Repfrters Of the Battle Of POort ROyal SPund in 1861 described "a
rich 0ld plantation mansi“n"; the h"me William POpe, Jr., the re-
dt»uptable f'gquire Pope", built in 1806 when he married Ann Scott
of the Grass Léwn Plantati®n family. COlginse P®int may have been
named f6r a ~.pr¢mﬁﬁtﬁry in Virginiaswhers Hhe ‘paftM tandeen, Rsdihed
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CONYERS PLANTATIVN. During the mid-elighteenth cehtury a gentle-

man named Céonyers, claiming t® be a descendant ©f Sir John Con-

.yers,ACOmmander Of the TOwer ©f LOndén during the reign Of King
‘Charles I, had a plantaticn on Scull Creek adjoining that of his

. T;Dadéﬁn‘sﬁnéin-law. Conyers and Lads®n jointed the purchase °f a

carg® Of African slaves brought directly t© the Island by a BNstOne

.based ship and reputedly did very well On the venture. Bug. COn-
yers was accidentally drcwned while fishing, the sp0t lﬂng-kn“wn
gl"éaily as "Conyers HCle". At the death of his widow, his plan-

tatiPn was inherited by their granddaughter, Mary Ann Ladsﬂn,
wife ”f Captain John Talbird.

'COttﬁn.HOpe Plantati®n. When Island planter ThOmas Henry Barksdale

died‘éhildless in August 1832, leaving his widow, Martha Sarah

“stOney Barksdale of the Otterburn Plantatién famil&, as sOle heir-

‘e8s, several Of his relatives brfught court acti®™n against the'

wldow and wOn hands®me cash settlements which necessitated the

sale Of Barksdale's 2600-acre Scull Creek Plantatitn. Squire POpe

brught 1000 acres lying nOrth Of'Fairfield Plantation along Scu;l
G
Oreek, including the hands®™me Scull Reémt Plantation HPuse with

its dfuble avenue Of Magn®lia GrandiflOra marching down t© the

Creek 1anding. Squire P"pe nNt Only renaﬁed it CottPn HOpe Plan-
tatirn but made it his Island seat, his sPn, William John POpe
and his family being then installed at CPggins P0int. Scull Creek
Plantation Huse was built by Thomas Henry Barksdale shCrtly
after August 1813 when the British landed in f®rce and burned
mhst of fhe“Island residences. It stfCd tw0 stOreys abOve a tabby
fﬁundati5n'basement florpr, the rulns Of which are extant.

QQWENHELANTATIUN, A representative of the St: Helena's Island

family os 5ﬁhn Céwen (died July 1752) and his wife; Dorfthy, a



was built by Thomas Henry Barksdale shortly after August 1813 when the British landed
in force and burned most of the Island residences. It stood two stories above a tabby
foundation basement floor, the ruins of which are extant.

COWEN PLANTATION

A representative of the St. Helena’s Island family of John cowen (died July 1752) and his MI» BW
wife, Dorothy, daughter of immigrant, John Norton (died 1705), probably Thomas or

Jacob Cowen, held two plantations, Lots 34 (232 acres) and 36 (314 acres) of the Mosse f ?‘ /
Survey. These were eventually incorporated into Shipyard and Possum Point Plantations. ¢

CROOKED CREEK
The Crooked Creek, a tidal estuary stretching from Calibogue Sound along the northern

shore of Jenkins Island and Fairfield Plantations, forming the northwestern boundary of
Honey Horn Plantation and twisting diagonally through Cotton Hope Plantation, was
consistently designated as Crooked Creek by all cartographers until the beginning of the
present century. Itis now known as Jarvis Creek.

CURRELL’S SINK

The 1766 map drawn by James Cook has a marginal note that twenty-five families were
living on Hilton Head Island in that year. Among them was a family of Currell which
gave its name to a natural depression in the Scull Creek area which eventually became
Seabrook Plantation. Census records show Thomas Currell still living there in 1820

DAVANT

A comprehensive, fascinating and informative history of the family of John Davant, a
cabinet maker, No. 310 on General Oglethorpe’s list of the settlers of Georgia, appears in
Transactions of the Huguenot Society of South Carolina, Nos. 74 and 75, Charleston,
1969 and 1970. Written by Hardin Davant Hanahan, it traces John Davant’s son, John,
from Tybee to Edisto Island a “look-out” under Captain Lardent, marrying Isabella,
widow of planter Joseph Watson. Their four sons: John, Isaac, James and Charles settled
on Hilton Head in the pre-Revolutionary period, variously owning Point Comfort,
Gardener’s (Two Oaks), Folly Field, Marshland and other plantations. Charles and
James were Revolutionary patriots, members of the Bloody Legion, Charles dying a
hero’s death in December 1781 when ambushed at Big Gate. e
DAWFUSKIE RIVER

The island south of Hilton Head is known buy its Indian name of Dawfuskie Island,
variously spelled Dewfoskey, D’ Awfoskie, Dawfuskie, etc.; the deep channel between
the two islands is designated as Dawfuskie River and as Daufuskie Sound on several
early maps. Itis now called Calibogue Sound.

DeSAUSSURE PLANTATION

During the pre-Revolutionary era a 312-acre plantation, Lot 35 of Bayley’s Barony, was
held by Daniel DeSaussure, son of the French Huguenot immigrants, Henri and Magda
Brabant DeSaussure of Lausanne who settled in Beaufort District in 1731. It was later
sold to J. Berwick and passed into contemporary Shipyard Plantation.




1l.
December 1781 when he was ambushed at Big Gate.

DAWFUSKIE RIVER. The island ‘sPuth ©f Hiltcn Head is knOwn by 1its

' Ihdian name Of Daufuskie Island, variﬁﬁsly spelled DewfOskey,
 D'Awf°skee, Dawfuskie, etc.; the deep channel between the tw®
-, islands 1s designated as Dawfuskie River and as Daufuskie SCund
| “lﬂn several early maps. It is n®w called CalibCgue SOund.

DeSAUSSURE _PLANTATION. During the pre-Reveluticnary era a

. 312-acre plantati™n, LMt 35 ©f Bayley's Barony, was held by
Daniel DeSaussure, s®n °f the French HuguenOot immigrants, Henri

: ]
- and. MagdalepDeSaussure "f Lausanne wh"~ settled in Beauf"rt Dis-

 trict in 173¢. It was later s0ld t® J. Berwick and passed into
cOntempOrary Shipyard Plantaticn.
DOHARTY. Circa 1740 subaltern James Doharty married Mary, dau-

~.ghter of an officer "f his cOmpany, by wh®m he had tw0 children:
8 80n ldter.knﬂwn as Captain James DoOharty ©f Hilton Head, and a
daughteﬁ who mérriedigaﬁg LeCraft and became the mOther ©f Captain
John Leacraft, COmmander Of the Blrody Legi®n. James DOharty, Sr.
was deéd by 1756 when his wid®w married Henry Talbird (Talbnt)
and became the ancestress ©°f the Talbird family. In 17§§;§§§fliﬁ
James DOharty cwned a plantati®n ~n Scull Creek adjC®ining that of
his half-brfther, Captain J°hn Talbird.

DOLPHIN HEAD. The promfntfry in E11lintt's Myrtle Bank Plantaticon

0verlotking Port RMyal SPund has 1°ng been designated D"lphin Head,
hon"ring the dflphin which e¢ntinues t" abound in the SCtund. One
early cart®grapher chfse t~ designate it as Balinclfugh Head.
’BRAYTON, Céntrary tr pfpular npiniﬁn, the Dfaytons were not an
Island fgmily‘ Thqir chief seats were nnjAshley River. Pergival
Drayt®n, Captain of the slrnp-ff-war PNcahOntas 1nanvember 1861,

, Wﬂé'ﬁ“t."éf_Fish Hall Plantation, Hilton Head" as has been claimed




A 12,
elsewhere. His brOther, General ThOmas Fenwick Drayt®n, did marry
~in 1832 Emma Cathérine, daughter °f J°hn Edward and Mary Baynard
- (Edings) Pfpe, "wners "f Fish Hadl, but neither Gen.'Drayt"n nfr
his wife ever nwned.the plantati®n. Gen. Drayt®n did use Fish Ha#l
-as well as O0ggins Print as his headquarters during his defense °f
the Island in 1861. The Often-t0ld "brfther against brother" stﬂry'
was true enfugh that year but they did n"t live unrectnciled there-
after. Percival Drayton, a bachel®fr, eventually died leaving a will
naming Thomas Drayton as his heir.

EDEN PLANTATION. A 1777 map ©f the Island shfws a plantatictn named
"Eden" cOvering the area along Scull Creek later kn®wn as Fairfield
Plantati®n. This was apparently then the plantati®n residence ©Of
Williém Eden, widfwer, who married in May 1753 Marseil Margaret,
daughter °f Philip and Eleanfr Delegall.

ELIZA TREE. When Sarah Black married Williaﬁ(Baynard in 1791 and

moved t©® 850-acre Muddy Creek Plantation which he purchased in
1792, she‘brﬁught al®ng a hands™me and spirited persfnal slave,
as well as éﬁmé reputedly hands®me Jewelry. Different versiftns oOf
the stfry nf Eliza vary as t™ the details of whaﬁ happened, but a
dish of devilled e¢rabs gﬂne'bad, ptssibly pfisfned win:?dhissing

Jewels

ﬂ##sp#éng, led t© Eliza's being accused Of pﬂisﬂning her mistress.
She tried t0 escape, was apprehended and hangéd ®n a gilant live
fak at Big Gate. InnOcent Or guilty, her ghfst is ﬁ"nt t0 revisit
the scene ©f her agtnizing death, keeping alive her mem®ry in the
tree that bears her name.

ELIZABETH POINT, The Sayre and Bennett Map ©f 1775 designates the

pPint at the junctinn ©f Scull Creek and Port ROyal Sound as Eliza-

beth Peint, Other maps mark it Elizabeth: Island or Scull Print.
Buta the name Bﬂbbe Island persists.

e e e e v
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ELLIOTT PLANTATIVN. In 1787 William E11iott married Phrebe Waight,

the charming, vivacifus and beautiful heiress ©f 1000-acre Myrtle
Bank Plantati®n "n Prrt Rfyal SMund ‘and there in 1790 successfully
-develrped and grew the famfus long-stapled Sea Island c¢c”tt"™n which
quickly supplanted fice as the basis Of the f°rtunes Of the ante
bellum s®futhern planters. He died en rnute from Hilt°n Head t©
Beauf®rt in 1808 and their remarkable 8®n, William Elli“tt, AT,
planter ©f no less than nine great plantatifns, Phi Beta Kappa,
reciplent Of an h®nOrary degree from Harvard, M. A. fr°m Cambridge,
leglslat®r, senat”r, pret, sprtsman, agficulturist, author, play-
wright and Intendent of BeaufOrt, in which capacity he entertained
the Marquls de Lafayette in 1825, became the Owner Of Myrtle Bank.
The plantati”n was redeemed after the cOnfiscation and remained

in the family until 1934 when ThOrne and Lotmis bOught it. The
ruins Of Myrtle Banks HMuse with its massive tabby frundaticons and
chimneys are still visible at 17w tide, having fallen victim t0
er"sion.

BELLIS PLANTATION. After the death ¢f Katherine Barnwell Bryan in

1740 her 500-acre (sic) plantatifn, stretching eastward al”ng Port
Royal SPund from Myrtle Banim1$ukhe Atlantic, was sCld jOointly t
kidmund E1lis and Samuel Green as 900 acres. Edmund Ellis in his

o January 1775 will left his 685-acre Island plantatifn tP be di-
bided between his s®™ns ThOmas and Edmund. They eventually s”1ld
their entire Island holdings and settled ©n inland plantaticns
which eventually were incOrp®rated int? present Chelsea Plantatifn.
Katherine Bryan's "500-acre plantation" eventually prOved tO© cOntain

nearly 2000 acres}b"\ﬂﬂ“ﬁ@"‘j burn brothes Jehn Basnyell,Jn's 500 avw Fsh Motk .

FAIRFIELD PLANTATION. The 350-acre plantation stretching from Skull

Creek t” Jarvis Creek and fr"m COtt®n HPpe t©® Jenkins Island, was



anparently part ©f the Original Bayley's Bartny, sfld first t0
Captain J°hn GascCigne and ®nce "wned by W;lligm Eden. In the
1785 Survey by Dr. MPsse it was held by Beﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁgﬁgéﬁﬁ SNtn
thereafter it was purchased by Captain Jack St°ney whCse family
held 1t until cOnfiscati®n.

FENDIN. The family Of John and Elizabeth (ThOmas) Fendin °f St.
Helena's Island definitely played a rfle in HiltPn Head's histOry.
Their daughter Mary (1746-1804) married Captain'Charles Flryd,
planter ©f Walnut GrPve Plantati®n ©n Hilt"n Head. Their daughter
Elizabeth, b®rn 1751, married three Island plahters: (1) Richard
Bland, (2) Charles Davant, the Revﬂluti“na;;fgggz, and (3) Christ-
lan Rankin. Thelr s®n J%hn Fendin, bOrn 1754, in 1781 jfined The
Blo"dy Legifn t0 avenge the death Of his brfther-in-law, Charles

Davant.

FENWICK PLANTATION. John Fenwick is shown "n the 1783 MMsse Survey

t® have been the hflder Of part Of L0t 27 Of Bayley's Bar®ny, a
445-acre plantati®n later inc”rpfrated int? Leamingt®n.

FERGUSON PLANTATIVUN. In 1783 Mr. Fergus®n, apparently a stn Cf

J°hn and Mary Fergus®n ©f St. Helena's Island, acquired a 316-acre
plantati®n ©n the s"uth side °f Brfad Creek, LOt 28 Of Bayley's
Bar®ny, fOrmerly leased by kstall Laurence and eventually incCr-
pfrated int® Shipyard Plantatifn.

FERRY POINT LANDING. For many decades during the cflfnial, Kevhlu-

tionary, ante bellum and subsequent eras, ®ne °f the principal dfcks

and landing places f"r Hilt"n Head was °n the western side °f Jen-
kins Island ®n Calib”gue S"und. A public rfad led acrfss Jenkins
Island, through Fairfield t" J7ln "ther Island rfads. The site 1is
87 marked “n many maps.

FICKLING PLANTATICN. As early as 1798 William and Samuel Fickling
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Wérévﬂilten Head planters, "wning both Prssum Print and Shipyard

' Pléntatiﬂns, more than 2000 acres, stretching from Broad Creek’tﬁ

vthe'Atlantic‘between Print Comfort and Leamingt®n. Samuel Fickling

married Elizabeth Davant (1775-1808), daughter ©f JCthn and Lydia

';7<?§(Pdge)¥bavént,vheiress of a 310-acre fcean-front plantation, Lot

38 of Bayley's BaroOny.

FLOYD PLANTATIUN. Captain Charles Floyd, planter nf Walnut Hill

'[Plaﬁtatiﬁn,'Hiltﬂn Head, s"n Of Samuel and Susan (Dix0®n) Fltyd,

was born in Northampton County, Virginia in 1747, married in St.
’He;enavs Ohurch, Beauffrt 1768 Mary Fendin. Thelir s%n, John Floyd,
,waé;bﬁfn ®n Hilt"n Head 3 October 1769. Charles was a RevPlutifnary
'her?; member Nf The Blocdy Legi”n which avenged the 1781 death of
fhis b%htnéf;in-law, Charles Davant. He sPld Walnut Hill t0 William
_P“pé; Sr.j&lggg_l?Q? and m®ved t~ Camden Crunty, Gefrgia with his

86n, Jhn, later Maj. Gen. John Flcyd Oof Fairfield Plantation, fCr

whom Flnyd'cﬁunty, Ge"rgia is named, wﬁﬂ married in 1793 Isabella
Maria Hazzard by whom he was father ©f Gen. Charles Rinald® Flnyd
of Béllevﬁé‘Plantatiﬂn. | ,

FISH CREEK. A small tidal creek, nPted for its fine flounders,

shrimp and crabs, drains Chaplin Plantaticn directly int® the At-
lantie Ocean,7cutting through the sand dunes and acrfss the sandy
beach. Dufing the 1893 hurricane it 1is repfrted that "cean waves
flrrded Fish Creek, spilling wildly int® Broad Creek and cutting
the Island assunder.

FISH HAUL CREEK. The brrfad, meandering tidal creek which drains

Springfield Plantatif®n int” P"rt R"yal Sound has usually.been kn®wn
as Fish Haul Creek alth~ugh it was briefly kn®wn as Mitchelville

Orbek. .The nime apparently derives fr®m the Ang®lan word "gaul",
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meaning a "bay"; "fish gaul" is rfugh and difficult °f prfnunciatifn,
easlly bec™ming "fish haul". As early as the 1767 will "f Samuel
Green wh? lived ®n its west shfre, it was called "Fish Hall Creek".

Ao~ Lakled Lo Fobm Banmwetd, Tn: whon fu s0ld it in 1760
Fish Ha#l Plantatiﬂn,(a principal seat of the Pope family who in-
herited 1t from Samuel Green, stretches westward fr®m the creek's
marshes t" Myrtle Bank.

M‘\*L‘r\ <\
FORT GILMVRE. In mid-1862 a 5.3-acre earthen fort was lald cut "n

a bluff ©verlfeoking Skull Creek by fOrmer Cdptain Quincy A. GillmCPre
as part "f a cOmplicated system ©f fortifications stretching acrofss
the Island from FOrt Sherman °n COggins PPint Plantati®n t© Skull
Creek. FOr his successful part in the capture ©f Fort Pulaski ©n
11 April 1862, Gillmefre, "a quick-speaking, quick-mOving" dark-
halred, bearded veteran ©f the CCrps Of Engineers, was pr®m®ted t©
brigadier general and later t® major general. FOrt Gilm®re, ©On
former Talbird, then Seabr©®fk prfperty, was named fr him, despite

. the incfnsistency Pf the spelling.® was gusekly He-Tamed Foct Mitehel.

Hew
FORT MEPEHELL,. Currently ©°n State Highway 334, 1.1 mi. from its

intersectinn with Highway 278, lie the 4 acres Oof FOrt Mitchell, a

unlt °f the 1862-built fortificatitns, prOtecting the main army

dep”t at COggins PPint from surprise landside attack acrfss Fish

Haul Creek. It was named in hOnOr of Major General Ormsby M. Mit-

chell wh® arrived ©n Hilt®n Head 22 September 1862 via the trans-

pOrt steamer Aragd as cMmmander ©f the department.TkﬂﬂJUfﬂ*mmlihﬁfhgmﬁiu

A Gons Jostine BIock mvost Aforeerhd affmﬁl ol foafle f ~X Pﬁmw?:v‘hgw{'ﬂiﬂ-* )
FORT SHERMAN. S© ndirus remains the name &nd reputati®n Of William

T. Sherman that it is necessary t® remind Island visitOrs that Frrt
Sherman, a 15-acre earthenwOrk fOortification begun in 1861 On Coggins
PPint Plantati®n, was n®t named f°r him, but fOr PEsSmesssessr, Brig.
Gen. Thomas West Sherman, whose lack Of determinatl®n, indecision

and p®®r judgment have caused him t® be designated ®ne Of the wOrst
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general Officers ever cOmmissifned by the United States. He arrived
®n Hilt°n Head 7 NOv. 1861 as first c"mmander °f the Department Of
the SPuth.

FORT WALKER. Following May 1861 rectmmendaticns Of Gen. P.G.T.

Beauregard, Capt. Francis D. Lee Of the C°nfederate States En-
gineer COrps began cOnstruction ©f fortificati®ns On Hilt®n Head
in July, chlefly a battery located ©n CCggins Point Plantation
near the entrance t0® Port ROyal SCund. It was christenea Fort
Walker in honOr Of Confederate Secretary ©of War, L. P. Walker.
Slave lab®r was used fOr cutting, hauling and placing palmetto
logs, digging trenches, cﬂnstructrﬂg gun emplacements and a p®wder
magazine. UnfOrtunately, almPst n® heavy-caliber armaﬁent cOuld be
secured t” furnish it. CPl. William C. Heyward; Eleventh Regliment
of SPuth Carflina VOlunteers, wés in c®mmand with Gen. Th®mas F.
Drayt®n in charge Of the Overall defense Of Port ROyal SCund. When
the m"st f"rmidable expeditifnary fleet ever assembled up t® that
tilme arrived t0 attack Hilt"n Head, the 24 guns ©f FOrt Walker
were quickly put “ut Of c®mmissi®n and Gen. Drayt®n "rdered its
evacuati®n 7 N°vember 1861.
' FORT WELLES. The name ©f Frrt Walker was 0fficially changed by the
Grirnnal @rdens Mo, 29 Wdags, Expadl dhonany Conpr ) dU I Maa (¢ 15 ey (961
invaders in November-1861 t0O FOrt Welles,ag;n”ring Gide"n Welles,

b""lﬁ'\AM ﬁMS‘%ﬂh T\w. nga—v\ ;
U. S. Secretary of the Navy. The Welles name rapidly disappeared

from usage.

FOUR CYURNERS. The chief Iéland public reads from Ferry P"int Land-

ing t° CPggins Point and from Seabrtok Landing via Z2ion Chapel to
Braddfck's PPint crfssed where Sand Hill and Cherry Hill Plantatifns
thuched. On the nertheast ctrner stPPd the Negr® Methodist Church;
"n the n®rthwest cOrner st""d W. D. Brwn's general stfre, which

als” hfused the Island Prst Office, with living quarters of the
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Brﬂwns fn the fl~°r abrve. This was the Island chief crossrﬂadsAin
'1925 when the Brfwns were murdered and their st"re burned. The r"ad
’tOISeabrﬁﬁk Landing n°© 1ﬁnger exists; the crfssrfad is no®w Highway

:334; Four:CoOrners is practically 1l0st.

;quwFYLERhPLANTATION. Dr. Samuel Fyler (1782-1821), sOn ~f Ulysses and

Abiéail Fyler of Torringford, COnn., moved tO0 Hilt®n Head, bOught
" a plantatifn adjoining that Of John and Mery Ann (Lads®n) Talbird

. and c®mmenced the practice °f medicine. He married Ann, daughter of

"_gxhis Talbird neighbors, circa 1808. Their first two children, Mary

ffAnn and Aurelia, died in 1815 and 1813 respectively as their plan-

iitatiﬂn tﬂmbstnnes show. Their s®n, JChn Samuel Fyler, bOrn 1814 °n
» ;Hilt”n Head, accOmpanied his mOther to Cnnnecticut after the 1821
vifdeath of his father, the wid"w Fyler having married Dr. Luman Wake~ |
ffield*“f Winchester, COnn. in her father!'s Beaufnrt tOwnhCuse in
‘1822s.Thevfy1er Plantation was s0ld that same year t© Th~mgs Henry
Barksdale at whOse 1832 death it went t© William Seabrook.

GARDEN'S PLANTATION. In 1783 Lot 11 of Bayley's Barfny, 270 acres
lying along the sOuthern shOre Of Crftked Creek was "cOmmOnly called
Garden's Plantation", having been fOrmerly held by Benjamin Garden.

This constituted the nucleus Of ante bellum HOney HOrn Plantation.

- GARDNER. Gabriel P. Gardner, a black man, acquired Charles Davant's

‘'vast 1424-acre TwP Oaks Plantation after the cCnfliscati®n and held
part of it. He became Island Pﬂsfmaster in 1882 and was 8ucceeded
by his daughter, Sarah Gardner Heyward in 1886. B°th the land and
the chief Island rfad "n the nirth side ©of Brfad Creek are still
kn®wn as Gardner's alth"ugh his grandchildren alltwed the land tC
be s"1d £Np delinquent taxes.

' GASCOIGNE. English sea Captain John Gasctigne bfught from Bayley's

agent, Alexander Trench, a 500-acre plantati®n n Hiiton Head in
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"~ June 1729 which included present Jenkins Island which was 1ong
~ labelled "J%hn's Island". He als® Cwned a May River plantation

which still bears his name. Several Of his daughters, including

‘,Dﬁrﬂthy wh® married William Ferrebee ~f Bethany Plantation in
t?;ﬁ3§1779, married in Carflina and left descendants. GascOligne re-
“J:: .turned £0 England making a map Of HiltOn Head circa 1750 which

‘,'was widely cOpied. On 26 July 1765 William Gasc°igne, Esq. of

o St. James Parish Westminster, C0. Middlesex, England, eldest
-”“sﬂn and heir ©of Admiral John Gaschigne, deceased, shld t® Thémas
fsmith fﬁr 125 pfunds a 500-acre plantation "kn®wn as Apps",
v‘fgranﬁed'tﬂ CPl. Alex. Trench by the LOrds Prﬂprietﬂrs of Caro-
?;lina "en the s®uth part of Trenches Island, fOrmerly knCwn as

;Hiltﬂn Head Island". This has not been identified unless it was

the sane JOhn's Island which later belonged t® Talbird, then

'Jenkins, then POpe. .
GASKIN BANK. As earlyvas the 1775 Sayre and Bennett Map the tri-

angular;ehaped area frfm Braddfck's Print t0 Scarb”"rough Head and
'extending outward int® the Atlantic approximately 16 miles tO a
pﬂint~r”ughly half-way between th®se headlands, was Qesignated
Gaskin Bank. It represents'a vast uﬁderwater bank whieh effectively
mitigates the violence 0f Oceanic stCrms and prOotects the Island's

wide, sandy beaches from undue erfsicn. Gaskin is apparently a sime

. plification Oof GascOfigne (prPnfunced "gas'-cn-ny"), for Captain

Jﬂhn (tasec0igne.
GRAHAM. At least two wrrelwied planters "f this name are assfclated
with Hi1tOn Heaa. William J. Graham, planter of Grahamville, who

brhoutd il Bts waife
bﬂaght Hﬁnegwhﬁ}n Plantati®n fr°m the %%ney; whé?had bnught it in

1805 from the estate °f J°hn Hanahan, began cOnstructifn °f a resi-

dence thefenin 1861 which he did n"t ctmplete beffre chnfiscatifn.
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A% the time he had an Island residence on Skull Creek adjacent tn
 Fairfield. | |
,.g*fTTﬁe Rev. William Eastwick Graham wés sent by the Bish®p of LCnd®n-
" .t0 be RectOr Nf Prince William Parish in 1775. FOollowing the de-

T @strthiOn of his elegant Church by Gen. Augustine PrevCst in May

1779 he espPused the American cause and was frequently assfciated

with his brCther-in-law, Dr. GeOrge MCsse, in supplying provisions

.{fOr the patriots. He ©®wned a Hilt®n Head plantati®n adjacent t© 'his

nephew, William Pope, Sr., and perfOrmed his religifus duties
':thbﬁughéﬁt the area. In 1798 he was slected RectOr Of St..Helena's

_ Church, Beaufnrt and died 4 Oct. 1800, survived °nly by his widrw.

. ; GRASS.LAWN‘PLANTATION. Grass Lawn has enjbyed a efntinudus éxistence

since 1791 when William Pope, Sr. sPld 365 acres of his Crggins
 :5fP6int Plantation, which.he held in right of his wife, Sarsh Green,
';tﬁ hiswcﬁusin, William.Scﬂtt, son of Sarah Pfpe Sc0tt. The Sctt
family held Grass Lawn until the crnfiscaticn . William Wils®n bCught
400-acre Grass Lawn from the gOvernment for $90 in 1876; 25 acres f
it recently was s0ld for $1,250,000. ‘
.GRAY, James and John Gray appear ©n the 1783 MPsse Survey as having
"formerly leased" LOts 43, 44, 45 and 47 Of Bayley's Bar®ny, plan-
tatifns:totalling almtst 1600 acres. JOhn's birth and James' marriage
are recorded in St. Helena's Parish Reglister. John Gray witnessed
the 1767 will of Island planter Samuel Green.
Green. Samuel Green, planter ©f Fish Haldl and 0flginse PPint Plant-
atins, in his will of 24 Feb. 1767 left his property t0 his three
children by his first wife, Sarah (1734-1765), daughter ©f Jonathan
and Mary Ann (Chaplin) Norten: Samuel, Sarah and Susgnnah. Saréh
Green was 5619 heiress after Samuel and Susannah died yfung. She

married (1) Thomas Tucker and (2) William Pope, .Sr. t0 whom she
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carried all the valuable Green inheritance. Samuel's will, prtved
1770, als® left a bequest t" his nephew, William, sdh of his brnther,
JO0silah Green.

}GUERARD During the pCst-RevOlutifnary era Benjamin Guerard rﬁse tr

"ﬂ.;the eminence of One Of the Island's largest planters, Owning Fairfield

" plantation and leasing Lot 19, plus parts Of LOts 18 and 22 Of Bayley's
Barfny in 1783. After his death circa 1789 his estate was dispersed.
;HANAHAN. From his Edist0® Island seat a successful planter, J°hn Han-
'llahan,'began acquiring Hilton Head prOperty in 1789 by purchasing Lot
. f29,“g 446-aore plantaticn formerly held by Dr. P"well and JOhn Fen-
‘wick. TO this he added 403 acres Of the late Benjamin Guerard. In
| 1792 he bfught Let 11, the 270-acre Garden's Plantati®n between 014
‘HOuse and Crfnked Creeks. When his estate was settled in 1805, mOst
n,ﬁf his prﬂperty was sOld t". Captain JOohn Stfney. | |
:HERON PUND A favorite nesting place °f the Island's still prelifie

‘her®ns was 1ong appropriately knPwn as Herfn Pend. It lay parallel .
with the main public rfad on the south side Of Brfad Creek, between
the road and the Ocean, south of Pope Avenue ©n Point CAmfort Plan-

tation,

" HILTON HEAD. The celebrated headland which gave 1its name t© the

entire lsland was named frr Captain William HiltOn as a result of
the publicati®n Of his accPunt Of his expleratOry visit here in

Septamber 1663 in his ship, The Adventure. It st®®d "n the eastern

side of the mfuth of Fish Haul Creek and was the site Of FOrt Walker.
It has since suffered greatly fr°m erfsitn.

'HOGG ISLAND The 1733 advertisement °of Captain J”hn GascfNigne, Nfw

fering his Hiltﬂn'Head Island plantatifn for sale, calls it "Hrg
Island", apparently referring t° the whole Of what is ndw Jenkins

Island. The tiny fsland at its northern tip retained the name until
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recently, n®w being called largely Blue Her®n Point. The "hogg"
speiling was dOubtlessly an attempted similar upgrading ©f less
lovely "hng" No Hogg family ever Owned it.

~ ISLA DE 103 vSvS. Spanish maps antedating 1663 generally designate

. ‘the entire island as Isla de Los Osos - Island of the Bears. NO
Ather name cﬁuld be given by the Indians when the first Eurﬁpeans
arrived in the sixteenth century. |

JARVIS CREEK. Like Melchisedec, Jarvis enters histﬁry without kno®wn

fahtecedénts‘ﬂr descendants. Yet traditicn insists that "a man named
.iﬂarvis" was found dead (drrwned? murdered?) ©n a small island in
“Crbrked Creek which runs al"ng the northern bfundary °f H°ney Hfrn
~Plantation and empties int" Calibfgue Sound. Thencefﬂrth,'Crnﬁked
"?Créek has been Jarvis Creek; a man had t” die in Order t” achieve
-iimmortélity.
1Z;JENK1NS ISLAﬁD; Den®minated "HOg Island in 1733 and later "JOhn's

'Iéland, Oh the 1783 M0sse Survey it is "Talbird Island" while the
- 1873 Navy Map marks it'"POpe's Island". The 31l5-acre plantati®n be-
tween Skull and Crooked Creeks was Owned by Isaac Ripp®n Jenkins, s"n
of Richard Jenkins and Martha RippOn Jenkins Hanahan, widow ©f ThOmas
Hanahah, Isaac Ripﬁﬂn Jenkins married 17 Jan. 1793 Hannah Scott (1777-
1800), daughter Of Joseph James ScOtt Of Grass Lawn Plantati®n and
.hié wife, Catherine, daughter Of JNseph and Hannah Adams. The 1800
'Census shOws Isaac Jenkins planting Jenkins Island with the assistance
nf 100 slaves. Isaac and Hannah were parents Of,twn daughters: Sarah
Jenkins wﬁﬁ‘married JO0seph James Pope and Catherine Adams Jenkins

wh® married Dr. George MOsse Stﬁnej of Otterburn. Isaac Jenkins died

circa 1805 and Jenkins Island was bought by his brfther-in-law,
Wiiliam Pﬁpe, Sr. who left it t©® his son, J0seph Adams Prpe, in his
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will ©of 18 March 1823. Jenkins Island it remains.
JOHN'S ISLAND. After Captain John Gascfigne brught Hrg Island in

1729 from the Bayley heirs, it was kn®wn as JChn's Island until
acquired by Captain John Talbird in the Revflutitnary era.
. JONESVILLE. The area arcund the head nf Old House (Muddy) Creek

became known as Jonesville after a family of Negrfes Of that namev
secured the prfperty and settled there fcllowing the 1861 cOnfiscation,
JOYNER'S BANK. The underwater sand bar, exp®sed at 1low tide, which

';exteﬁds ?utw#rd intc the Atlantic from the northeastern cOrner of
'Hiltﬂn Head, has 1"ng been designated JOyner Bank in hfn"r "f Sea
tCaptain-Jﬁhn Joyner wht dled 9 March 1796 at his plantati®n near
- Beaufnrt. He had mOved t0 Car®lina from Frederida, Ge®rgia in 1750
‘féﬁd~was in c¢Pmmand of a Scout Brat from 1754 until'the brats were
v}n” L“nger‘necessary at which time he became a planter. St. Helena's
TParisﬁ Rég1ster recOrds that his wife Phebe (fr®m England) died Of
"pojgon" in Jﬁly 1754 and that he married in January 1755 Anne,
daughter ©f Capt. Richard and Anne Wigg; she predeceased him by'twﬂ
days. Althfugh he had several s®ns and daughters, he left ©nly fne
grandéhild, John Jﬂyher Smith, by a daughter Margaret wh? married
Archibald Smith in 1789 and dled in 1795. John Joyner Smith married
in 1813 Mary Gibbes Barnwell, eldest daughter Of Col, Edward Barn-
well, and built a magnificent home Pn the Bay which remains ®ne nf
Beauf"rt's treasures; they died childless. A map drawn by James Cock
in 1766 nftes that it was "approOved by Mr. JOiner (glg), twenty
vears a-pilﬁt in that place". .
LADSON. The Rev; Henry Talbird wrote in 1889 that his grandfather
Lédsﬁn, th Owned a mid-eighteenth century Scull Creek plantation,
"was an Enélishman, the only "ne °f his family in America". Prgsibly
he was not & descendant Of the brothers John and Francis Ladson

: , )
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whese familles have flourished in SPuth Car®lina since the 1670s.

At any rate, he married the daughter ¢f his nelghb®r CCPnyers and
thelr daughter, Mary Ann, inherited b®th the COnyers and Lads®n

- plantati®ns, marrying a neighbOring planter, Captain JOhn Talbird.
Tw® Other LadsOn daughters married ©fficers ©f the British army,

(Zoct 178
-One Of wh®m burned his sister-in-law's Island h®me d&n 1Z28 on

Orders Of his superior officer.

LAURENCE PATH. Estall Laurence 1s revealed by the 1783 M0sse Sur-

vey t° have been a planter Of s®me magnitude, Operating a t0tal Of
six plantati®ns with m"re than 1600 acres. He laid Out the rfad
from the main n®rth-sfuth Island public rcad ©n the s"uth side Of
Brtad Creek toO thé Atlantic, which later came t©® be kn®wn as POpe
Avenue, separating PPint COmfPrt and Pfssum PPint Plantatifns.
Laurence's Path, now POpe Avenue, has bec"me the Island's main
business thOrofughfare.

LAWION. As was and is their went, the Lawtfns came t° Hilton Head
in style when Rev. J0seph Alexander LawtO®n married in 1836 his
first cfusin, Martha Sarah Stfney, widow Of Thomas Henry Barksdale
and helress t® his 2600-acre Scull Creek Plantation, 1820-acre
Calibfgia Plantation wOrked by 156 slaves and 290-acre Baldwin
Plantati®n. They made Calibfgla their chief Island seat s® that
eventually it became kn"wn simply as Lawt®n's. His uncle, the Rev.
Winb®rn Asa Lawt"n, frequently assisted him in minlistering t© the
Island's Baptists in the chapel they built on Calibfgia. SOme Of
the Other ramificatifns ©f this alliance are discussed in my Tales

Of Ante Bellum Hilt°n Head Island Families.

LawtOn Avenue. Several maps sh®w Lawt®n Avenue paralleling POpe

Avenue t© the s®uth and al®ngside Lawt®n Ditch, from the Lawt®n

h®me directly t® the Atlantic. It n® 1lOnger exists as such.
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LAWTON CREEK. The tidal creek winding ardund the n°rth end °f Long

Island, now CalibOgue Cay, and back tO the LawtOn residence ©n
Calibfgia Plantatifn is still knOwn as LawtOn Creek. It empties
nOrthward into Broad Creek.

LAWTON;PUND. Lawten Pond was a vast rice field lake traversed by

LawtﬁnlAvenue at Oﬁe pPint and is marked as such on several meps.
‘It has since been mestly drained in the magnificent alteration of
1the't9p°graphy which has taken place during the develﬂpﬁent of Sea
vPines Plantation, the Plantation Club nOw 1l00king Out 9ver what
‘was LawtOn Pond.

LEAMINGTON. With three miles ©f beautiful ®cean beach and tw®

‘miles Af frontage "n Brofad dreek, vast 2000-acre Leamington Plan-
tatif’n was assembled from LOts 24, é5, 26, 27 and 34 °f Bayley's
Barony, ﬂﬁce chiefly Davant-held prfperty. At cOnfiscatitn it was
owned by Joseph POpe, adbtiSugh It was ndt amOng the extensive is-'
land properties left by William POpe in his 1823 will. Later it
was acquired by the Beauf®rt Gun Club which 501d 1t 0 a grfup of
North Car0lina spOrtsmen whe preserved it intact until its recent
acquisition by Palmett® Dunes for developmént. |

" LIGHTHOUSE LANDING. The federal government retained enfugh acreage

Of cOnfiscated Leamingt®n on which t® erect a lighthCfuse in 188l1.
On Broad Creek, af the ptint where Shipyard and Leamington met, a
dock was built in Order t° land supplies fOr the_mainténance Oof the
lighthOuse and for World War II Camp McDougal whicﬁ flourished ©Only
bfiefly. The d®ck has since burned. |

LbNG ISDAND. The 1°ng, narr"w island lying alfng the sf®uthern sh”re

~f Brodd Creek as it empties int~ Calibogue Sound was called LOng
Island as eérly as the 1783 MPsse Survey, beingAparts of LOots 43

and 44 ﬂf Bayley's Barnny. The name has n"w been changed t" Calibfgue

an.

o oz = e ————— o -
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'McCULLOUGH'S FIELD. What was ©nce a regularly-cultivated and

prﬂductive'field'on Pope's Pine Land Plantati®n has now reverted
t0 forest. But for decades varifus maps kept alive this Memory
0f eighteenth-century Island planter James McCullPugh. He was
_;probably}a member Of the family Of Andrew McCullOugh whOm the

| 1790 Census shOws as planting in the area with the assistance of
eleven slaves.

'MARABUOY 'PLANTATIVN. Yne ©f the three plantations on Skull Creek

shtwn Hr_xiCapt. Gasct0igne's map was Marabufy. The name has disap-
:peared but prssibly it was the Island home Of the dﬂnyers or Lads™n
famillies kn®wn t0 have been living in that area at the time.

 MARSHLANDS PIANTATION. When James Davant died in 1803 his will left

Lot 31 0f Bayley's Barrny, well-known as POssum Print, t° his
‘aaughter Lydia. But the heiress had alregdy been married On 18 Jan.
1798 by their nelghbOr, Rev. William Graham, t© Island planter
ThémAS Webb and they preferred t® make their home fn LOt 22 at the
.head Of Broad Creek, next d0o0r t0 her sister Rebecca, calling it
Marshlends Plantatifn. FOllowing the 1816 death Of Thomas Webdl,
Lydia and her eldest s®n, Samuel, Opefated the plantatifon until
after 1820 when their neighb”r, William Fripp Chaplin of Chaplin

. Plantatinn, added the 400 acres Of Marshlands t0 his hOldings. At
the c"nfiscation by the federal g®vernment, bOth plantati®ns were

distributed t? ex-slaves and were no®t redeemable.

MASONIC HALL. A Mas°ﬁic Lrdge was Organized and a building erected
between the public read and Brrad Creek On the northern edge of ‘
Leamingt®n Plantati”n. Captain John Stfney was Master Of the Lfdge
for many years until his accldental death in 1821. |
MATHEWS , Rebecca Davant (1793-1859) inherited Bl4-acre Lot 21 of

Bayley's Barony in 1803 and after she married Episcopal priest and
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planter, Rev. Philip Mathews, they enlarged it t0 600 acres, calling
it Sand Hill Plantati“n.and making theif'hﬂme there. As Rectﬁr or
Z21°n Chaﬁel as well as the Church ©n St. Helena's Isiand, Fr. Mat-
hews attended the Conventifns ©f the DiOcese Of Sfuth Carflina reg-
ﬁlarly, reporting in detail On the spiritﬁal cﬂnditiﬂﬁ of his two
Churches. The Mathews family als” Owned 500-acre Ocean-front Folly °
Fleld Plantation which tOgether with Sand Hill were Often simply
calléd "Mathews". BOth were cOnfiscated by the federal gOvernment
and 0n1y.200 acres were redeemable by their three children: Sarah
'La; wife 5P.Winb”rn Benjamin Lawt®n; Mary E., wife "f Rev. J"seph
‘ de"rge and Dr. The“dﬂre Deh“n.Mathews' wid"w, Mary Elizabeth Lawtn,
all °f wh"m agreed t” sell their remaining lands t©® Will Clyde.
MITCHELVILLE. &fter the 7 Nov. 1861 fall of the Island t0 federal

ffﬂrces, several thrusand Negr® ex-slaves gathered arfund the military

'.base tO be taken care Of., GNPvernment sawmills turned Out vast quan-
tities Of lumber, cut from confiscated Island timber, with which
lﬁné, 10w, barracks-like structures were Ordered bullt by Maj. Gen.
Ormsby M. Mitchell t© house these blacks, cOmmunal kitchens and
wagh—hﬁusés being separate. These buildings were énected'between
Fort Mitchell and Fish Haul Creek which led t° the area's being
called Mitchelville. Even Fish Haul Creek was kn®wn fOr several
decades as Mitchelville Creek. After the eventual departure Of the
military, the Mitchelville buildings were gradually pulied d®wn ’
bfard-by-bfard, as were all the buildings Of the military depft

and ZiPn Chapel, and burned for fuel by the resident blacks.
MONGIN'S BLUFF. In 1725 David Méngin and his yOunger Brﬁther,

Franels, at the behest Of their French Huguen®t father wh later
died of ﬁﬁrture when he refused t® renfunce his faith, hired a

rishing bBAat and fled acrnss the English Channel from France and
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thence t® Lo°nd®n. In SOh” Square ®n 4 Sept. 1726 David M°Pngin mar-
ried Persille Dair wh” died 6 Aug. 1747 and was buried in Westmin-
ster Abbey Cemetery beside fOur Of their children. The same m"nth
David MPngin and his tw0® surviving children sailed fr°m LiverpOrl,
arriving in New Jersey 10 NOv., prCceeded t® Princet®n, then Over-
land t© SNuth Carf”lina where David had a 680-acre grant fOr land at
Purysburg in Granville Cfunty. He chfse instead t" accept acreage »euff
aﬁ Daufuskie Island which he named Walnut Grove Plantati®n and re-
turned t” Princet®n t© marry "n 23 Dec. 1749 Elizabeth, the 15 -vear
nld daughter Nf J"nathan kEdwards (1703-1758). They had fur child-
ren b”mazwiﬁ?ﬁ?gmﬁm?hpm. 19 m&grnﬁimﬁ%“b
David married a third time in 1765 in Charles TOwn where he died
25 Nov. 1770 at the age "f eighty, being buried in St. Michael's
Churchyard.

David's eldest sOn, David J%hn MOngin, bCrn in LOnd®n 4 March
1739, was a member ©f the Bl00dy Legifn which avenged the death Of
Charles Davant in 1781, as was his s®n, JPhn David M°ngin (1763—- ;
1833) of Walnut Grﬁvejrﬁaufuskie. The 1775 Sayer and Bennett Map
shows the vast bluff Overlofking Calibfgue SOund fr°m ©Old H°use
Creek t0 Buck POint with the name "MOngin's Bluff". By 1790 the
MPngins had s”ld this prﬂperthigﬁanish Wells Plantati®n, t°
ThPmas Baynard. H"wever, Daniel M°ngin and his bride settled else-
where ®n Hilt"n Head in 1798 and were still planting here in 1820
ace"rding t© the Census.

MOSSE. Dr. Ge®rge Mnsse (1742-1808) arrived in Carnlina by 1767,
in 1771 marryiné;?gnrﬂthy Phrebe, daughter of Jrnathan Norton, Vest-
ryman °f St. Helena's Parish. He practised medicine, Operated an

extensive tannery and leather business, planted grapes fr°m which

he made sugar and wines, cane fr®m which he made sugar and rum,
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indig" and benne (°r sesame, prized for the valuable 0il pressed
from its seed). He served as surge™n at the Battle Of Camden, was
captured and imprisfned by the British abfard the Pris”n Ships
T”rbaz and Pack HOrse in Charlest®n harb"r. After the War he sur-

wn I T3 R&MﬂﬁyﬂuSe ﬁM;Mam.f-mﬂ—ran
veye@ﬁwh&t remained Of Bayley's BarCny fOr/ gt el Sty

’Pno,,,,,,glzw tohdet {,M* Aeized bl Fhe oo spee
BEnr ey S Yo B O I O :T'fo%f, divﬁging its 14,924

acres Int? 47 land 17ts Or plantatifns. ShPrtly after 1790 he
moved his wife and seven daughters t" a spacl”™us h®me "n the s"uth-
east cOrner Of Brhught®n and West Brfad Streets in Savannsah where
/o/za,z_ﬁ.a.:.d T iekms . Hisdong bZon , Mostin presae e )
Snducted a sch”"l frr Y ung'!ladites £Nr several yvoars. He was
fblfﬂunding deac™n "f Savannah's First Baptist Church in 1795. In
gved foa -
1807 he bAmght—a plantation at Robertville where several Of his
daughters lived and there b"th he and his wife died and were buried
irinfioes
in 1808. An ©il/pOrtrait Oof him is extant.

MOUNT PLEASANT. Vne ©f the three Skull Creek plantaticns shown nn

John GascOigne's map was MOount Pleasant, pfssibly the Island resi-
dence Of the COnyers "r LadsOn family. The name has disappeared.

MUDDY CREEK. Stretching from Brfad t0 Muddy (Old House) Creek, be-

tween Otterburn and Spanish Wells Plantati®ns, was 850-acre Muddy

Creek Plantatiﬁn, fwned by Daniel Savage in 1783, bPught by William

o tvaa. u-Lwrallf his napbiar

" Baynard in 179¢ whauleft-&%—tﬂ -his—mephew, William Edﬂings Baynard

BT80S0 dled in 1855, leaving Muddy Creek t° his stns; after
the c¢®nfilscation it was not redeemable. Willlam P. Clyde acquired
mfhst Of 1t by 1894.

Muddy Creek, a tidal creek emptying int® Calibfgue SPund,
runs al®ng the s®uthern bOundary ©f LOt 11 of Bayley's Barfny,
Honey HOrn Plantatitn, and is called b®th Sandy Creek and 01ld

House Creek in 0ld maps and deeds.
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MYRTLE BANK PLANTATION. The site ©f the successful develPpment Of

long-stapled Sea Island c"tt™n by planter William E11iott in 1790
was 1000-acre Myrtle Bank Plantatifn at the Island's n°rthwest cnp-
ner, named fOr the hands®me indigen®us evergreen tree, the wax-
leafed myrtle, which flourishes here. Originally granted in 1717 to
CPl. Tuscarfra Jack Barnwell who® bequeathed it t0 his daughter
Bridget, wife Of Captain RObert Sams, their sfn, RObert Sams, Jr.,
inherited it in 1760'dy1ng childless. It was s”1ld t0 William and
PhOebe (Jenkins) Waight whfse beautiful brunette daughter inherited
1t and 1in 1787 married William Ellictt. The Plantation was a favOr-
lte seat Of several generatins Of the Elliftts and their heirs
until 1934 when 1t was s0ld t© ThOrne and LOOmis.

OAK GRYVE CHURCH. Yn the foundatifns of Zion EpiscOpal Chapel at

the head of Brfad Creek, amidst a magnificent grove of ancient live
Oaks, Island Negroes built their “wn Oak Grove Baptist Church circa
1885 and there c"ntinued the worship ©f Almighty G°d. The Church

has since mOved acrfss the public readys®me tw® hundred yards nearer

Blg Gate.

OLD HYUSE CREEK. v1d House Creek is the tidal creek stretching east-

ward from Calibfgue SPund alfng the nfrthern edge O°f Spanlsh Wells
and Muddy Creek Plantations, separating them fro°m H°ney H°rn Plan-
tati®n. It is als® called Muddy Creek and Sandy Creek.

OLD WYMAN'S FVULLY. This densely wénded swamp °n Lawt®n's CalibOgia

Plantati®n is n°w 1fst as well as densely inhabited, but fOormerly
was marked ®n Island maps f"r many decades. It did not denPminate
the slte Of any elderly female's indiscreti”™n but was probably the
site °f an 71d woman wh® liked her "wn cOmpany and chOse t0 live

8l%ne in the whods.,
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- OTTERBURN PLANTATIVN. (Vtter Hall, Vtter Hole) The 900-acre plan-

taﬁion bearing the appellatifn of Otterburn, then Ytter Hall and
presently vtter Hole, was part Of Bayley's Barony, Lo0ts 12-15 of
the MbSSe Survey which shows it as chiefly held by planters Thom-

~,-as Bull and Jeremiah Sayre. By 1793 when he married Elizabeth,

sixteen year 0ld daughter "f Dr. GeOrge MOsse at her father's home
~1n Savanngh, Otterburn was °wned by James Stfney, son Of Captain
J*hn Stfney. Only twe of their fifteen children survived £ ma-
‘_turity, thair sn, Dr. Ge"rge MOsse Stfney, bCtrn 1795, inheriting
"Ottérburn wh1dh he planted while als® practicing medicine On the
Island and in Beaufnrt where he built the large mansiﬁn which was
known for years as the Sea Island HOtel. After his death in 1854
his‘déughter Emma married Middleton Stuart in 1855 and inherited
- Otterburn. The Direct Tax Commissinn sold it in 1866 £or unpaid
éxﬁbrtiﬁngﬁe federal taxes; the Sea Island COtton Company s€ld it
‘1n 1888 §0Vthe United States COtt°n COmpany which went bankrupt
in 1896 at which time W. J. Verdier bought it, later selling to
Fe E. Wilder who sfld t0 W, L. Hurley ﬁhence it went t0 ThOrne

and iﬁhr’nié as Otter Hole.

PARMENTER. Peter and Anne Parmenter's daughter, Anne, was bap-
tized in St;.Helena's in Feb. 1725, Martha in 1727. J0seph Par-
menter married here in 1733 as did ancther Anne Parmenter, spin-
ster. The family was well-established ©n Hiltrn #ead by 1767 when
wealthy‘planter Samuel Green, in his will entrusted his twr daugh-
ters;vSarah,Hnd Susannah, their mtther having died in 1765, t~ the
care ﬁf‘Mrs. Martha Parmenter f"r thelr educatin and upbringing
"tiii thej éﬂm6 °f age", and his °nly sCn, Samuel, t® "Mr. Benja-

min Parménﬁéf;;fﬁ." for the same purp”se. The widow Sarah Parmenter

o ————— e
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als® Of Hilton Head, married Lewis Bna in June 1774 and they were
8till planting part of Lrt 4 (Folly Field Plantation) in 1783.

Lady planter Martha Parmenter planted the remainder of LOt 4 and
the 286 acres Of adjoining LOt 3. On the north side °f Broad Creek
'Mr$a DOorothy Parmenter was holder Of part of Lot 16. The Parmenter
‘mén were effective in making wid®ws Of their wives; their name is
n® 1longer known °n Hiltrn Head.

POINT CYMFVRT PLANTATIVN. The size ©f Print Comffrt Plantatirn has

varied greatly through the years as has the size "f m"st "thers. The
.baautlful bluff Overlfoking Brrad Creek was called PPint COmfrt as
early as 1783.when it had only 267 acres ffrmerly planted by Wal-
Ceftt & Cowen, bought fr~m Bayley heirs by Crfuch fOr resale t° Is-’
‘land planter James Davant (1744-1803) wh® added t" it LOts 38 and
39 farmériy held by Estall Laurence. At "ne p0int it included s"
much of adjoinihg Calibfgue Plantation that it was s® called and
may have reached a maximum "f 1750 acres. Davant's will left it by
L0t numbers to several Of his children, all ©f whOm s®ld t© that
indefatiguable buyer of Island land, Squire William Pope, circa
1824, At the coOnfiscati”n Print Comfort cOntained 1000 acres and
was redeemed by Sarah LOvinia, widfw of Squire Pope, in 1872. She
willed it t her dsughter, Eliza, wife of Rev. Alstp Park Whrdward,
who 801d Print COmfort t0 Will Clyde in 1889. |

POPE. Williem Pope crnssed Port RMyal Stund from St. Helena's in
1785 t" marry the heiress of Fish Hall and Cﬁggins Point Planta-
fiﬂns, Sarah Green, widcw ©of Thomas Tucker. William eagerly plunged
int" what became a 1ife-1fng career fOr bNth himself and their sfn,
William, Jr., buying and selling lands which they planted. He
bought Let 4 Of Baylay's Barfny and in 1791 s6ld 365 acres (then
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called Grass Lawn Plantati®n) Oof his wife's COggins POint lands to
his cPusin, William ScCtt; from the estate Of his br®ther-in-law
he bOought Jenkins Island; from Richard Bland he bPught ad jPining
acreage which he cOntinued t® call Grass Lawn; from Charles F1l0yd
he bOught Walnut Hill and fr°m J°hn Kean, ksq. he bﬂughf Spring-
fleld. When Sarah Green Tucker POpe died he married (2) in Jan.
1798 Sarah, daughter Of his cfusin, JOseph James ScOtt, by whom
he had a sec®nd set Of children. She brfught him a fine plantation
°n Euhaw Creek kn®wn as Republican Hall which he s01ld t0 Henry
McNish whOse relative, Mary Catherine McNish, had married his
brf0ther-in-law, J0seph Adams ScOtt. In later Years he mfPved t” a

plantati®n on May River where he made his will in 1823; he als®
fwned several "ther mainland plantatiOns including Rethium and
Crescent. Meanwhile, his s®n William, Jr., kn®wn as Squire Pope,
cfntinued the POpe acquisiti®ns, buying 1000-acre POint COomfort
In 1823-24 and from the estate Of Thomas Henry Barksdale lOOO-acre‘
CCtton HOpe in 1832. At the cOnfiscation in 1861 he perstnally
fwned: 1000-acre Pfint COmfort, 400-acre COttOn HOpe, 1100-acre
Haighs Point (on Daufuskie Island), 1000-acre Pine Lands and 900-
acre CPgglns Point and Springfield Plantatifns. His hl%f—brﬁtherﬁdthﬂmd

o Clunan~ %-r—"‘\ ikdﬂ’&
®wned Fish Hajl andhzooo acre Leamingt”n Plantatifne.

p)

POPE AVENUE. Called Laurence's Path as early as 1783, the rfad frfm

the public rfad °n the sPuth side Of Brfad Creek running straight

fut t° the Atlantic and separating Point Comfort and POPssum P int
Plantati®ns, was called Pope Avenue after William POpe bNught Print
Comfort 1n 1824, It is today U. S. Highway 278, the Island's chief
business street with St. Luke's Episq“pal Church as well as Meth”dist
and RPman Cathflic Churches, the Island's Post Office, The Pe®ples

Bank, The Bank Of Beauffrt and the Medical Center.

e LR e
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PORT ROYAL SOUND. In 1562 a white-sailed ship filled with French Huguenot colonists

and commanded by Jean Ribaut, nosed between St. Helena's Island and the bold head-
land which more than a century later would first be called Hilton Head, into the
capacious mouth of Broad River and promptly christened it PORT ROYALE "because of
the largenesse and fairness thereof'. The name has endured. Many books have been
written to recount its history; many more will be. Hilton Head itself was known

officially as "Port Royal, South Carolina" during the federal occupation 1861-1872,

POSSUM POINT PLANTATION. As early as 1783 the 323 acres of Lot 31 of Bayley's Bar-
ony were known as Possum Point Plantation, taking the name of the natural bluff
overlooking Broad Creek. It had been leased by planter Robert Richards but was
purchased by planter James Davant (1744-1803) who willed it to his daughter, Lydia
(1780~1824) who in 1798 had married planter Thomas Webb (1769;1816). She sold Possum
Point to Samuel ¥ickling, husband of her sister, Elizabeth Davant, who had inherited
adjoining Lot 38,

RANKIN. Christian (Christopher Poor) Rankin was not only a member of the Revolu-
tionary war party, the Bloody Legion, which avenged the 1781 death of Charles Da-
vant, he married Davant's widow, Elizabeth Fendin Bland Davant. He was born on
Hilton Head, son of planter John and Mary Rankin, 25 July 1756, the same year Eliz~-
abeth was born. They had one daughter who married a Cook.

REYNOLDS PLANTATION. Island planter Benjamin Reynolds bought two plantations total-

ling 632 acres in 1783, Lots 34 and 36 of Bayley's Barony, land formerly held by
Cowen and later incorporated into Possum Point and Shipyard Plantations.

RICH. William and Meredith Rich, Island planters, sons of William and Martha (Mere-
dith) Rich who were married in St. Helena's in 1735, held parts of Lots 12, 13 and
17 of Bayley's Barony in 1783. Meredith Rich was a member of the Revolutionary war
party, the Bloody Legion.

RUSSELL. George Russell held a 335-acre plantation on the south side of Broad Creek,
Lot 30 of Bayley's Barony, in 1783, land later added to Shipyard Plantation. George

Russell, sofi of Stephen and Judith Russell of James Island, had married in 1754
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Sarah Delebere, widow of Edward Morris, Captain of the Port Royal Scout Boat who

had died in Dec. 1753.

SAND HILL PLANTATION. The home of Rev. Philip Mathews, Rector of Zion Chapel, and

his.wife, Rebecc? Davant (1793-1859), daughter of James and Lydia Davant, was 600-
acre Sand Hill Plantation, the basic portion of which, 3l4-acre Lot 21 of Bayley's
Barony, land formerly held by Richard Bland and by her uncle, Charles Davant, was
inherited by Rebecca from her father.

SANTA HELENA. In the interest of historical accuracy it must be pointed out that

the original Spanish discovery by Pedro de Quexos on 18 August 1521 of the "punta"
or "cabo", the point or cape, of St. Helena was truly Hilton Head itself, rather

than the island presently known as St. Helena's.

SAVAGE'S PLANTATION. Daniel Savage married in 1736 Mary Wells, tﬁeir son Daniel,
Jr. being born in 1739.on Hilton Head; Mary Wells Savage died at their Muddy Creek
Plantation home in 1754. Daniel Savage married in July 1754 Jane McKee. The 850-

" acre plantation between Otterburn and Spanish Wells was still their home in 1783

as recorded by D r. Mosse. The 1790 Census shows Daniel Savage still planting Muddy
Creek with the help of twenty slaves. He apparently died or moved away shortly
theveaftev, for it 1792 his plantation was sold to William Baynard. Daniel Savage
was a member of the Revolutionary war party, the Bloody Legion.

SAYRE PLANTATION. During the colonial period a Sayre family settled on a plantation

on the north side of Broad Creek, land ultimately merged into Otterburn. Jeremiah
Sayre and Elizabeth Grgene were married in 1770; the 1786 birth of a daughter, Sarah
Bell, is recorded in St. Helena's Register. An interesting map of the area was drawn
by R. Sayre and J. Bennett in 1775. Jeremiah Sayre held parts of Lots 14, 15 and 16
of Bayley's Barony in 1783,

SCARBOROUGH HEAD. The promontory approximately one mile south of Hilton Head itself

has been designated on various maps since 1735 as Scarborough Head; it marks the
point where Port Royal Sound and the Atlantic Ocean meet. Like the name Hilton Head,

Scatborough Head does not derive from any settler or plantation family, but rather
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from things nautical. It was named for H.M.S.Scarborough, a man-of-war, which
patrolléd the Carolina coast a§ early as February 1726 when records show that "a
young Gentleman belonging to the Scarborough Man of War" was buried in St. Andrew's
Parish. The shipé officers were still using Scarborough Head as a landmark as late
as November 1758 when Governor Lyttelton wrote from Charles Towne, "Capt. (Isaac)
Colcock arrived here the 2nd Instant in the Scarborough Man of War". The name '

persists,

SCOTT PIANTATIVN. The plantation family of Scott, clrsely allied with

the great plantatitn families of Pope, Norton, Chaplin, Jenkins and
Baynard, was represented "n Hilttn Head as early as 1781 when William
Sc~"tt was a member Of the RevOlutifnary war party, the Bleody Legion.
In 1791 he bOught 365 acres ~f Chggins Point Plantatiﬁn,knﬁwn since as
Grass Lawn Plgntatinq,from his cOusin, William Prpe. By 1799 Ocean-

front Grass:Lawn, eventualiy enlarged t® 600 acres, was the seat Of

William's elder brOther, JOseph James ScOtt (1754-1804) who had acquired

The MOount Plantation (Or less elegantly, "ScOtt's Hump") ©n St. Helena's

®nly five yéars earlier. The 1798 Bible Of Joseph James and Catherine
(Adams) Scott is extant, shOwing in detail the ramifications of the
family's numerfus marital alliances. After cOnfiscation by the federal

government in 1861, 400 acres Of Grass Lawn was s0ld t0 William WilsCtn

"for $90 in 1876; he s01ld t® R. C. McIntire whOse heirs sold to Will

Clyde in 1895,

SCULL POINT. The nOrthwestern cO®rner Of thd Island, at the juncture Oof
Skull Creek and Port Royal SPund, is designated Scull Point rn many
maps, Elizabeth Pfint "n at least “ne map and BPbbs Island "n mOst.

SEABROVK PLANTATIVN. The rich farm lands along Skull Creek were di-

vided int" as many as ten or twelve plantatinns during the eighteenth
century with Cfnyers, LadsPn, Talbird, Fyler, Currell, Wallis, Greene,

Waight, Eden, E11li0tt, Stoney and Other families enjoying their btunty.



Then Thomas Henry Barksdale (1795-1832) gathered intP One vast 2600-
acre tract, which he called Scull Creek Plantati®n, all the lands
from E1110tt's Myrtle Bank t0 Stfney's Fairfield. At his -death the
western 1000 acres was so0ld to Squire POpe who called it Crtton HOpe;A
the eastern 1600 acres were bOught by William Seabrook, ksq., the
elegant planter 0f'EdistO Island, wh® had in 1825 so lavishly enter-
tainéd the Marquis de Lafayette. After the cOnfiscation Williah's
heir, James Seabr0fOk, was unable t°© redeem it and in 1873 deeded it
t™ R°bert C. McIntire wh0se heirs sfPld it t" Will Clyde in 1895.
SEABROVK LANDING. Yne ©f the mnfst frequently used landing places ©n

Hilton Head from its discOvery t0 the 1956 building ©f the James F.
Byrnes Cro0ssing, was a bluff Oon Skull Creek. BOats rfwed Or sailed
s~uthward from Charleston and BeaufOrt found here a safe, sheltered
1aqding, protected from the gales and st"rms Of the Open Water nf
POort ROyal SOund. It eventually came t© be On the dividing line be-
tween Seabrook and Myrtle Bank Plantations and from it public rcads
branched out t0 every p®int ®n the Island. If it had a name prifr t0
SeabroOk's 1832 purchase Of the site, it is noOt now knﬂwn...

SEALY PLANTATION, Island planter James B. Sealy married ©n 14 May

1790 Mary Davant (1773-1806), eldest daughter ©f James and Lydia Da-
vant, helress t0 200 acres Of L0t 22 Of Bayley's Barfny at the head
of Brfad Creek, land later included in Marshlands Plantati®n. Their
twt children were: Mary, b"rn Sept. 1792 and James, bOrn Aug. 1794
wh” married Elizabeth StOney ©f the Otterburn family and was still
planting ©n Hilt"n Head as late as the 1820 Census. James B. Sealy
died circa 1795, his widow marrying Gefrge Kicklighter by whom she
had three children, all b®rn on Hilton Head: Ann, b®rn Dec. 1799,
Ge"rge, b®rn May 1804 and Mary wh? married her first cOusin, William

Irwin Fickling.



8.

SHELLY PCINT. West of Baynard's Braddock's Print HOuse was a prom"n-

tory overlooking CalibOgue SOund and near the entrance to Brrad

Creek. It 1s designated Shelly POinf ®n several maps since it was

chiefly a shell bank.

- .SHIPYARD PLANTATION. With twe miles or frontage ®n deep-water Broad

Creek,‘plus the asset of a grnd landing site (called Lighthouse Laﬁd-
ing after 188l1), it appears that.the Ficklings here cOnducted as a
sideline, a shipbuilding 0perat19n which gave its name tO© the 1765-
acre plantation. Samuel Fickliﬁg married Elizabeth Davant (1775-1807)
ﬁh“se’inheritance from her father, James Davant, included a 310-acre
plantation in the area. William Fickling, brﬁther to Sémuel, als”
lived ®n the Island in the eighteenth century. After cOnfiscation
Shipyard was Owned by Jedediah Dwell from 1871‘t0 1891 when he s0ld
to Will Clyde. The name persists.

'SKULL CREEK. The tidal creek which ebbs and flows between POrt Royal

and CalibOgue SOunds, part of the Inland Passage nOw called the Intra-
cfastal Waterway, separating HiltCn iead from Pinckney (fOrmerly

Mackeys) Islend, is called Skull Creek. It has als® been called Scull

" Creek and Skulk Creek, the latter taking nOte Of the wOnt Of the In-

dlans t0 skulk in its prOtected waters with its easy access sPuthward
t0 sensitive Spanish and Creek Indian centers. SO it was first called
Skulk Creek, then sOftened t® Scull Creek, as it was generally kn®wn
for decades, and finally rOmanticized t® Skull Creek, many ©of which

have been cracked in its envirtns during its 10ng history.

Skull Tsland. The small island at the juncture Of Skull Creek and POrt.
RPyal Sound has Occasiﬁnglly been called Skull Island. The name BCbbs
Island, probably its earliest disignation, has pfevailed.

SNAKE ISIAND. As early as 1783 the small island between Long Island

and the main body "f Hilton Head was designated Snake Island, d°ubt-
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4lessly because it was 19w, little used by humans and c®nsequently
highly infested with reptiles. In its entirety i1t lay within Lot

44 Of Bayley's Bar"ny, later CalibOgia Plantation. In its present
éﬁmmercialization, the name has been euphemistically altered to

Deer Island although there Are few deer Or snakes there anj 1onger.

SPANISH WELLS. The Indians first discOvered, used and intrfduced the

Spaniards t® the sweet, fresh-water springs ©r wells On the Island's
bluff (later MPngin's Bluff) ©verlocking Calibfgue SOund. As 1lOng as
the Spaniards,attempfed to defend thelir claim t©® the territOry between
Flﬂridé and Virginia, the wells were a cCnvenient sOurce Of fresh wa-
. ter fOr their ships' casks. Though the Spanish claim was decisively
1ost at:the Battle Of Blo0dy Marsh On St. SimOns Island in 1742,'the
name Spanish Wells Plantati®n has persisted. One of Agent Trench's

- sales Of Bayley's Bartny plantations was tO0 ROger MOOre whe® sfld toO
William Spoad whe Leftof im s will o Todu Dovid

¥ MOnging who s0ld the 600-acre plantation t0 ThOmas Baynard_in‘
1790. William Eddings Baynard (1800-1849) inherited it and after the
cOnf'iscatio®n his sOns redeemed it. It was s®ld t0 Will Clyde in 1894
t0 settle the estate.

SPRINGFIELD PLANTATION. "My tract ©f land Oon Hilton Head knOwn by the

name Of Springfield that I purchased °f J°hn Kean, Esquire, I gilve,

‘grant and devise t" my sOn William", wrote William POpe, Sr. in his
1825 will. Springfield was a small 150-200-acre plantation lying ©n
the. inland side of Fish Haul Creek, between C"ggins P0int and Fish
Ha#l Plantati®ns. Since Squire POope was als” bequeathed CPgglns P“int,
Springfield was added t” it and in effect 10st its identity as a sep-
érate plantatifn althMugh its area is still kn"wn.

STEAMBCAT LANDING. Jenkins Island Plantation House st0~d beside a

deep-water d®ck ©n Skull Creek, the regular landing place fOr the

steambfats plying the run from Savannah t0 BeaufOrt t® CharlestCn.
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This.landing site was restOred and expanded t" serve the State High-
. way Department's ferry service until its termination in 1956 with the
Opening of the James F. Byrnes Cr0ssing. It shﬂqld not be cnfused
with Ferry Point Landing on the CalibOgue SOund side Of Jenkins Island.
STONEY. In 1774 the immigrant John ("Captain Jack") Stoney rf
Knﬁckshegowna, Tipperary, Ireland; his wife Elizabeth, neé Caulfield,
and their twO-year 0ld sOn James, arrived in South Cartlina. In 1784
he bfught LOts 13 and 14, 422 acres Of Bayley's Bar®ny On the n®rth
side °f Brfad Creek, the'nucleus of Otterburn. During the Revelutifnary
War Céptéin Jack had a Privateer, "Saucy Jack", built for him by
Hbcaw Billy Pritchard at his shipyard near Charleston, with which
ship he is said t© have been very successful, Operating with a letter
nf Marque. There is als® evidence that he cOmmissitned a secOnd vessei,.

the Privateer GOvernOr MiddletOn, built by Pritchard during the War

Of 1812. In 1788 Captain Jack was ass®ciated with plantér Isaac Fripp»
in building Zion Chapel (EpiscOpal) at the head ©f Broad Creek. He
died in 1821 at Fish Hul Plantation as a result Of a hunting accident
andAwas buried there, his remains later being remOved t0 Zion Cemetery.
In 1793 James StPney, who inherited Otterburn, married Elizabeth,
born 1776, daughter Of Dr. GeOrge and Dorothy. Phoebe (NOrton) MOsse,
at her h®me in Savannah. Otterburn descended t°® their 8on, Dr. GefOrge
MPsse Stﬁney.

TALBIRD ISLAND. The Talbird family letter, written by the Rev. Henry

"Talbird (1811-1890) t0 his cfusin, C0l. Nathanlel Henry Rh0des Daws®n
(wh® was a brother-in-law of President Abraham Linc®ln), tells the
romantic stOry Of Henry Talbird, sOn Of Sir John Talbot, LOrd Mayor ~f
Dublin, who was iﬂst as a small bOy while visiting an uncle in Lond°n,
br”ughtltn SOuth Car©lina by Captain Haylt®n where he eventually married

in 1750 Mrs. Mary D"herty, widow Of a yOung subaltern. They were parents

[ SO S
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Of two daughters and fOur sOns, One Of whOm, RevOluti®nary War Captain
John Talbird, was given a plantation ©n Scull Creek by his father who
had receivéd it from the Crown in part payment fOr building the first
Tybee Lighthfuse ©f bricks made ®n his Whale Branch Plantati®n. Capt.
John Talbird married Mary Ann Lads®n, daughter Of a neighb®ring planter,
wh® eventually inherited her father's, as well as her Grandfather
Conyers' plantatif®n; he als® bOught JOhn's Island which by 1783 was
already kn®wn as Talbird's Island. Their sOn, Henry Talbird, was bOrn
on Scull Creek ®n 19 Oct. 1781, the day COrnwallis surrendered t©
Washingtn in Virginia; he had an extensive library and é "chemical
labOoratory" in which he en joyed whrking, accOrding t° his s®n, the
Rev. Henry Talbird, whe was als® bOrn On the Hilton fead Island plan;
tation. Captain John Talbird's daughter; Ann, married Dr. Samuel Fyler
(1782-1821). Talbird's Island was s0ld t© Isaac Ripp®n Jenkins.
TRENCH'S ISLAND. Alexander Trench and his'wife Hester arrived in Caro-

lina from Dublin, Ireland circa 1720, settling in BeaufOrt, for Trench
was agent fOr JOhn ﬁayley, stn and heir of Landgrave JChn Bayley. By
June 1729 when he s0ld Captaiﬁ John Gascfigne a 500-acre plantati®n, he
described iﬁ as "in St. Helena Parish, Granville dﬂunty, part °f an
Island c¢®mmOnly knOwn by the name ©f Trenches Island". Captain Gas-
cfigne's "wn 1750 map , based ©n his 1729 survey ©f the area, labeled
Hilt"n Head "Trenches Island" and French mapsAdutifully translated it
"Isle de trancheses". Trench's wife ﬁester died befOre 1729 when he
made his will leaving his estate t° their s®n Frederick, with his Own
brfther, COuncillor Frederick Trench Of Dublin, as Administrator.

TWO VAKS PLANTATIVN. Island planter Charles Davant (1750-1781) who

married in June 1776 Elizabeth Fendin, widrw °f planter Richard Bland,

. held Two Ogks Plantation on the nfrth side of Broad Creek. There he

: 22 8uiols
died in the arms ©f his wife @n Bessssmber 1781, mOrtally wounded from
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ambush by Captain Marﬁinangel 0f the RPyal Militia. His sOn, Charles
Davant, inherited Two Oaks, moved t" the mainland in 1839 and 10st Two
‘Oaks at the confiscatiﬂh when the large l424-acre plantatirn was s"ld
t~ Gabriel P. Gardner. It has since been kn®wn as Gardner's.

UNION CEMETERY RVAD. Approximately cne-half mile sfuth Of Four CCOrners

a rfad branched eastwardly acrfss FClly Fleld and Grass Lawn t” Spring-
field and COggins Point Plantations. On its north side a cemetery was
established for the Unifn sCldiers whr died here 1861-1872. After the
establishment of the National Cemetery in Beauf©rt, all of these remains
-were re-interred there. Island blacks ctntinued t0 use it for a réstihg
place for their dead. The name persists.

on Fhc 18 Qpa. 17 %L Afaﬂgfﬂtm&%m,
WAIGHT'S PLANTATION. ¢ Robert Sams, Jr. #==3%8® inherited from his

m~ther, Bridget Barnwell Sams, the 500-acre plantatibn.at the northwest
corner Of the Island{ he died without progeny and it was sO{E;EﬁOWilliam
and PhOebe (Jenkins) Waight of Beauffrt, PhOebe being a daughter of
Jnseph‘Jenkins and Phoebe Chaplin wh0se parents were John Chaplin and
Phfebe Lads®™n. Their daughter, yet an®ther PhCebe, a béautiful, charm-
ing and vivacitus heiress with many ardent suitors, inherited the plan-
tati®n and in 1787 married William Ellictt who first grew there 1n:1790
the famfus lﬁng-stapléd Sea Island cP2tt®n which he develOped.

WALLIS PLANTATION. The Sayre and Bennett Map ©f 1775 sh”ws a Wallis

Plantati®n on Scull Creek near what became Seabr”tk Landing. NOthing

is nﬁw kn®wn Of the family.
WALNUT HILL PLANTATION. The 1823 will ©of William Pcpe recites that he

bfught Walnut Hill Plantati”n from Charles F1l0yd and leaves it t0 his
s®n, John E. POpe. Charles Floyd s®1ld Walnut Hill circa 1797 and mOved
to Cémden County, GePrgia where he and his s”n, JOhn, settled. Walnut

Hill was On the n®rth side 0f Fish Haul Créek, prﬂbébly adjacent t0

Springfield Plantatiﬂn and prcbably incOrpOrated int® either Fish Haul




°r Cherry Hill Plantation.

WEBB PLANTATION. The Rev. William Eastwick Graham, Rector of St.

Helena's Parish, on 18 Jan. 1798, drubtlessly in Zicn Chapel ©f Ease,
Officiated at the wedding ©f ThPmas Webb (1769-1816) to Lydia Davant
(1780-1824), daughter of planter James Davant and heiress t0 Lot 31
°f Bayley's Barfny, 323-acre PPssum POint Plantation. They made their
h®me and Webb's 400-acre Marshlands‘Plantati”n, fOrmerly Lot 22 onf
Bayley's Bar®ny. There their four children: Samuel B. (1799-1836),
.William, J%hn and RObert ThOmas (1807-1842) were born., William quT
Chaplin bOught Marshlands after 1820 from the estate of Thomas Webb.

WBELCH'S PLANTATION. During the Reveluticnary era, Island planter

James Welch held a 364-acre plantation, Lot 40 of Bayley's Barony,
later incOrpoOrated int® Lawton's CalibOgia Plantation.

WELLS PLANTATION., Witnesses t© the 18 March 1823 will of William Pope

included James Wells and JOosiah Wells; pOssibly they were Island
planters since the 1873 Navy map shows a Wells family h"lding POssum
PPint Plantation. Charles Wells and John Wells appear in St. Helena's
Parish Register in 1734 and 1740; Mary Wells married Island planter
Daniel Savage in 1736 and Susannah Wellsrmarried James POpe in 1755.

WHOVPING CRANE PUND. There was an era when the néw-threatened-with-

extineticn Whooping Crane nested regularly in the vast swamp stretch-
ing acrfss Pope's Pine Land and Fish Ha®l Plantations and draining
int® Popt Royal Sound. It remains a rockery with many species of our
fine-feathered friends. But nr longer 1s the who0p Of the Whooping
Crane heard on Hilton Head.

ZION CHAPHEL VF EASE (EPISCYPAL). A well-app®inted chapel, 30 x 40 ft.

~f wotd with brick foundations, brasting a sterling Communion Service

impfrted from LOndon, was erected in 1788 under the directirn orf
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Captain John StOney and Isaac Fripp. It was cCnsecrated in 1833.
Members ©f the Barksdale, Baynard, Chaplin, Davant, Fripp, Kirk,
Mathews, Pfpe, ScOtt, StPney and Webb families whrshipped there
until 1868 when the Church was aband®nned and gradually deétrﬁyed.
Later Oak Grove Baptist Church was built on the same foundatirns,
Now Only Zifn Cemetery,with its massive granite Baynard Maus©leum
surrounded by the tCmbstOnes Of members Of many Of the 01ld Island

plantation families,remains t® bear witness t® an era almOst

forgdtten.
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